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Highlights

During the past year, Portsmouth Water has again been
recognised for sector leading performance

- The Company has maintained its position for operating and

capital maintenance efficiency

- Levels of service amongst the highest in the water industry
- Water supply maintained with no need for restnictions in the

summer of 2007

- Significant progress achieved in the AMP4 caprital expenditure

programme

- The RoSPA Gold award for occupational health and safety was

achieved for the third successive year

2008
Turnover £33 9m
Operating profit £7 6m
Profit before taxation £8 4m
Net debt £79 0m
Capital expenditure £12 0m
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Chairman’s Statement

I am pleased to report that the performance of Portsmouth Water
has continued to progress strongly The Company was recognised
as economically the most efficient water company i the UK and
In terms of customer service, was placed fourth out of twenty
two compantes in the Overall Performance Assessment by the
Water Industry regulator Ofwat It also has the lowest level of
complaints (measured by complaints per 1,000 customers) in the
industry

That the Company has been able to achieve such high standards
of performance 15 due to the commitment of employees

and | would like to thank everyone for thewr hard work and
dedication The Company will continue to provide the support
and training required to develop its people and create continued
improvements in all activities Technology 1s betng used to
generate effioent working In the last year we completed

a project to equip a section of the workforce with mobile
communications and work scheduling which has provided a
more responsive service for our customers and has reduced
travelling time and the costs of transport During this year we
developed a faciity to recycle excavated material This will help
the environment by reducing the material put into landfill, save
the energy currently used to produce new aggregate maternal and
reduce costs

The financial results for the year ended 31 March 2008 show a
reduction in operating profit of £1 2m (14%) to £7 6m (2007

- £8 8m) The previous year's results included a one-off credit of
£1 1m 1o the FRS 17 pension charge following a change to the
rules of the pension scheme which resulted in a lower hability for
the scheme Revenue from the bulk supply to Southern Water
was down £0 4m as the facility was not used in the year, whilst
in the previous year it was used continuously A reduction in the
tax charge to £0 2m (2007 - £2 6m) as a result of the impact

of the abeltion of industrial bullding allowances, and other
changes to capital allowances and corporation tax rates in respect
of the deferred tax resulted in a profit after tax of £8 2m (2007

- £8 1m})

In the hight of these results the Directors are recommending a
final dmdend of £2 1m, which will be paid in May 2008

Significant progress was achieved with the Company's capital
programme established at the last penodic review Gross capital
investment for the year amounted to £12 Om (2007 - £14 8m),
which included £4 8m on infrastructure renewals A new
membrane water treatment plant was commussioned at the Rwer
ltchen Treatment Works in June 2007, and two similar plants will
be commissioned in the summer of 2008 The total cost of these
plants will be £11 4m

The number of customers wishing to switch from an unmeasured
to a measured supply through a water meter in the year was 70%
above the level assumed by the regulator at the last price review
and 1n the three years since the price review, the total number

of customers switching 1s almost double the assumed amount
The regulatory framework allows a Company to seek an intenm
determinatian of is prices where the financial mpact of an
increased number of customers switching to a metered supply 15
deemed to be above a matenahty threshold At the current level
of switching, the impact of the Company's cashflow s very close
to the materiality imit, but at this stage the Company does not
intend to seek an intenm determination of pnces, which would
add to customers’ bills

In December 2007, the Company published a Strategic Direction
Statement which outlined how it will meet the chatlenges it faces
over the next 25 years The challenges include chimate change,

an increasing demand for water and a reductton in our ability

to abstract water due to legislation aimed at protecting key
habitat sites within the Company’s area In 2007 we conducted
research to seek the views of our customers on their satisfaction
with the service we provided and their willingness to pay for
improvements These views were reflected in the Strategic
Direction Statement Key elements of the strategy are

- Whilst setting ourselves new leakage targets, we will urge
Government to help us manage demand by requining all new
households to meet water effiiency standards

- We will mplement a Metering Programme to meter 85% of all
properties by 2035 which will ensure that most households pay
for water by volume with new tanffs to limit excessive use

- We will develop key new resources incfuding Havant Thicket
Winter Storage Reservoir 1o cptimize our use of the surplus
winter water from Havant & Bedhampton Springs

- We will cantinue to renew both our underground and above
ground assets to mimimise interruptions to supply and help
reduce leakage

The Strategic Direction Statement was the first element in the
pracess of developing the Company's Business Plan for the period
2010-2015 which the regulator Ofwat will use as the basis for
setting new prices from 2010 This process, known as the Periodic
Review, will conclude in November 2009 and 1s consuming

a great deal of management and staff time The information
required for the review has increased in complexity and volume
since the last review 1in 2004 and the Company 1s acquinng more
staff and outside help to cope with the workload

Ofwat have recently published the second part of it's review of

competition, which will inform the review being undertaken by

Defra In the paper Ofwat recommend that contestable markets
are opened up to competition where it will benefit customers

Portsmouth Water 1s an important part of the communmity 1t serves
and we strive to play an appropriate role in 1ts development by
providing education, promoting the health benefits of drninking
water and the need to use water wisely and efficiently The
Company sponsored the Pnimary School Science Fair which 1s
promated by the Portsmouth and South East Hampshire Business
and Education partnershup and played an active part in the Water
Festivals of Hampshire and West Sussex It also has a partnership
with the Sir George Staunton Country Park promoting education
and the importance of water

The Board 1s commutted to providing a safe and healthy working
envirenment for 1ts employees and | am pleased to report that
the Company achieved the RoSPA Gold Award for occupational
health and safety for the third consecutive year

This report highlights the excellent achievements of the Company
and its employees and | am confident that it will continue to
mamntain tugh standards of customer service and performance in
the future

~Tn ok
Y,

T M Lazenby
Chairman
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Operating and Financial Review
Our Business

Portsmouth Water provides water to 299,000 homes and businesses in an area covering 868 square kitometres from the River Meon in
Hampshire to the River Arun in West Sussex The Company serves the cities and towns of Portsmouth, Chichester, Fareham, Gosport,
Havant and Bognor Regis On average, each day 1t supplies approximately 178 million hitres of water through a network of over 3,200
kilometres of underground mains Water supplied, which 1s generally of high quality, is denved from the chalk of the South Downs
and 15 abstracted from wells, bareholes, springs and the River ltchen The table below shows the major sources used by the Company
durnng the year The springs at Havant and Bedhampton, which provide batween 30% and 35% of the total supply, are thought to be
the largest group of springs used for pubhic supplies in Europe

Source Actual 2007/08 Abstraction % of Supply % of Supply
(Million Litres) 2007/08 2006/07
Springs at Havant & Bedhampton 20,003 30 31
River ltchen 8,567 13 9
Boreholes, Wells & Adits 38,665 57 60
Totals 67,235 100 100

A map showing the Company’s area of supply and the location of its sources and treatment works 1s shown on page 21

Water from the springs at Havant and Bedhampton 1s treated at the Farlington treatment works and there are also treatment works
at the River ltchen and Lovedean, which accounts for approximately 3% of supphes Water from the remaning sources requires less
sophisticated treatment

Portsmouth Water's charges are the lowest in England and Wales, the average annual bill for water being £85 per household, the
equwalent of 23p per day In real terms, the price of water for household customers has fallen by 13% over the last 11 years This

compares with a real increase of 10 6% for the industry as a whcle, as lllustrated in the chart below, where the 1996/97 prices are
indexed at 100

Comparison of Average Household Bills with Average Industry Tanffs

Index

1996/97 1997/98 1998/9% 1999/00 2000/01 2003/02 2002/03 2003/04 2004/05 2005/06 2008/07 2007/08

Company Average

industry Average

The water industry 1s subject to a range of UK and EU legislation Standards, particularly those relating to the environment, are being
tightened on a regular basis and require increasing levels of investment The standards of service provided by Portsmouth Water

are momitored by three main regulators - the Water Services Regulation Authornity {Ofwat) for setting prices and to ensure value for
customers, the Environment Agency (EA) for environmental protection and the Drinking Water Inspectorate (DWI) for drinking water
quality Customers are represented by the Consumer Counal for Water (CCW), which monitors the quality of service prowided by the
Company Portsmouth Water works closely with these and other organisations interested in the serwces 1t provides

Ofwat 1s the water industry’s economic regulator, and its principal duties are exercised through the price-setting process Ofwat sets
price mits for Portsmouth Water every five years The last determination of prices was in December 2004 for the penod 2005 to 2010
The price setting process 1s known as the Peniodic Review and involves a series of consultations between water companies, Ofwat

and the other regulators over a two year period The review examines all aspects of the business and requires the Company to submit
a detailed Business Plan to Ofwat Water companies are allowed to increase prices to customers annually by inflation (RPI) plus or
minus the price hmit set by Ofwat The price imits for Portsmouth Water are shown in the table on page 17 and reflect the revenue,
which the regulator believes an efficient company needs in order to finance rts operations and capital programme, after making an
assessment of potential future effictency gains
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Operating and Financial Review
Our Business

Water companies are largely natural monopolies and, in recognition, the Government, following Ofwat’s advice and wide consultation,
15 cautiously opening up to competition the market for provision of water to large industrial and commercial customers Although
these customers have been able to switch supplier since December 2005, none have done so to date

Portsmouth Water 1s recognised as one of the most efficient water companies in England and Wales (Source - Water and Sewerage
Service Unit Costs and Relative Efficency 2006/07 Report - published by Ofwat), and this has benefited customers through lower bills
over many years, as shown on page 5

Over the last twenty years, the Company has expenenced falling demand for water, particularly from commercial customers The
future, however, 1s expected to see nising demand from domestic customers, with a significant house building programme planned in
the Company's area of supply A twenty five year Water Resources Plan 1s also produced at each Periodic Review The plan is reviewed
annually and enables the Company to balance supplies with forecast demand even at times of dry conditions Future plans incorporate
a twin-track approach of demand management and addittonal sources of supply

The Company is commutted to sustainable development It must balance the provision of water supply with the needs of the
environment and play a part in ensuring that the UK complies with European and National environmental legislation

LEFT Mainlaying work being carned
out by the Company’s contractor

FARLEFT Hydrant flushing, carned out
1N order to maintain water quality

BELOW Detecting possible leaks
on the Company’s network




Portsmouth Water Report & Accounts 2008

Operating and Financial Review
Business Strategy

Mission Statement
"We aim to supply drinking water of the highest quality, providing high levels of customer service and excellent value
for money’

The Company has a well developed, focused strategy which will meet the demands of all its stakeholders The key objectives are

- To maintain services to customers at the highest level

— To balance the provision of water supply with the needs of the environment
— To maintain the health and welfare of employees

— To ensure that customers continue to enjoy secure and rehable water supples
— To meet present and future water quality obligations

— To mantain its leadership position at the water industry efhiciency frontier

— To mamtamn the atility to finance 1ts function

The strategy will be achieved by focusing on four key issues

— Hawing a well developed and frequently updated long term water resources plan, which will meet the needs of the customer,
through secure water supplies, whilst respecting the environment

- Putting customers at the heart of everything we do, and ensuring that they continue to receve excellent value for money

— Setting goals for efficiency which outperform regulatory targets

- Maintaining a motwvated workforce, whilst ensuring that the health and safety of employees 1s given the highest prionty

The progress of the Company against these objectives 1s measured by a number of key performance indicators (KP!) and these are
highlighted 1n the following section of the Review

Presentation to winmng students for the
Company's 150th Anniversary Artwark
Competition by Pamela Taylor, Chief
Executive of Water UK and Nick Roadmight,
Managing Director of Portsmouth Water
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Operating and Financial Review
Current Development and Performance

Financial Performance

Profit before tax

Turnover for the year increased by 2 6% to £33 9m This reflected the 5 37% overall tanff increase implemented in July 2007, which
was partially offset by a reduction of £0 4m of income from the bulk supply to Southern Water and £0 5m n income from new
connections, and other non-tanff work The income from the bulk supply was very high in 2006/07 as the extent of the drought
conditions in 2006 meant that it was operating for most of that year

Operating costs, excluding depreciation and the FRS17 pension charge rose by £0 6m (3 7%) This was largely due to salary pay awards
and electricity price increases The current service cost for the pension scheme was increased by £1 2m to £2 3m This was as a result
of a one-off credit to the charge 1n 2006/07 following a change in the rules of the scheme allowing retirees to commute more of their
penston to a lump sum, which has the effect of reducing the ongotng pension hability

There was a loss on disposal of fixed assets of £0 2m compared to a profit of £0 3m in 2006/07 when the Company sold three
properties

Interest recevable at £4 3m (2007 - £3 6m) relates mainly to interest recerved from group companies and 1s based on Libor plus 1%
An increase in other finance income of £0 2m represents an Increase in the expected return on Pension Fund assets

Interest payable at £6 2m (2007 - £5 3m) indludes a £2 9m indexation of the loan provided by Artesian Finance plc (2007 - £2 4m)
Interest on the capital sum amounted to £2 8m (2007 - £2 7m) Total borrawing was higher during she year as a result of the level and
timing of the caprtal expenditure programme and interest on short term borrowing was £0 3m higher

As aresult primanly of the increased pension charge and lower income from property sales, profit before tax reduced to £8 4m (2007
-£107m)

Taxation
The taxation charge was £2 4m lower due to a reduction in deferred tax which was the result of the effect of the removal of industral
buildings allowances and changes to corporation tax and capital allowance rates

Dividends

The dividends paid duning the year amounted to £4 209m (2007 - £4 471m) In 2006/07 a special dvidend of £0 3m was paid which
represented an element of the profit on the sale of property Dividends are paid up to the parent company and largely used to service
debt held by the group

Cashflow and Balance Sheet

Net cashilow from operations at £16 Om (2007 - £16 1m) reduced marginally as a result of a reduction in trade creditors Net cash
outlay on fixed assets at £12 2m (2007 - £11 8m) reflected a large outlay on the construction of the three membrane plants and
further progress on the mains renewal programme

Net debt at £79 Om (2007 - £73 6m) increased during the year as a result of the indexation of the £66 5m Index Linked Lean and the
relatively high capital programme At the year end, net debt to regulatory caprital value was 72 3% (2007 - 71 3%}

Interest Rate, Liquidity, Caprtal and Credit Risk
The major financal nisks faced by the Company are interest rate, hquidity, capital and credit nsks The Company assesses these nsks on
an ongoing basis and its poliaies for managing them remain unchanged from previous penods

The Company’s exposure to interest rate fluctuations 1s now imited by the fixed interest rate applicable to the index-linked loan drawn
i 2002, with inflation nsks on the cost of the loan being effectively hedged against requlated revenues which are also linked to the
Retail Pnces Index Interest is charged at a fixed rate of 3 635% on the indexed amount of the loan The indexed value of the loan at 31
March 2008 was £78 6m (2007 - £75 7m)

The Company seeks to manage financial nsk, to ensure sufficent hquidity 1s avaifable to meet foreseeable needs through an approprniate
borrowing structure and to invest cash assets safely and profitably on the short term market Shert term hquidity 1s achieved through

a £15m working caprtal facility and an overdraft arrangement At the end of the year, £4 0m of this faciity had been drawn {2007

- £1 5m), while the overdraft arrangement remained unutilised

The Company's objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the entity’s ability to continue as a going concern, so it can provide
returns for shareholders and benefit to customers
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Operating and Financial Review
Current Development and Performance ;

The capital structure 1s set at a level which provides an appropnate nsk profile to ensure the Company can obtain finance at
competitive levels As s common in the water industry the Company monitors capital in the ratio of debt to Regulatory Capital Value
(RCV) RCV 15 a measure of the Company's asset value used in the setting of prices in the water industry The level of ROV is published
by the regulator (Ofwat) on an annual basis The ratio achieved for 2007/08 1s shown below, and the details of the calculation are
shown on page 47

The Company's exposure to credit nisk results from the continuing impact of bad debt on its ability to collect water revenues It seeks
to mimimise this risk by utihising all avallable means, including the use of a dedicated debt recovery section, agencies for collecting
outstanding debt and following best practice guidelines

Accounting Policies

The accounts have been prepared in accordance with the accounting policies descnbed in note 1 to the accounts on pages 34 to 35
and with UK GAAP There was a change in accounting policy in respect of unbilled measured income as at the year end date, which 1s
described more fully on page 35 of the accounts

Under its licence of appaintment, Partsmouth Water Limited, a private company, 1s required to publish nformation about its annual
results as if It were a company cavered by the Listing Rules of the Financial Services Authonty  From Apnl 2005, histed groups are
required to prepare accounts in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) It 15 the Company’s view that these
standards are not appropnate for a regulated water business and 1t has been granted exemption, by Ofwat, such that 1t need only
adopt IFRS when non-listed companies are required by statute to do so

Pensions
The Company accounts for the Brockhampton Pension Scheme in which it 15 a partiipating employer, in accordance with FRS17 The
latest actuarial valuation carried out for the purposes of FRS17 showed a surplus after deferred tax of £21 6m {2007 - £15 3m)

Key Financial Performance Indicators
Gearing (net debt/requlatory capital value) and cash interest cover are recognised as key indicators for the Company Performance in
2008 against the target ratios 15 shown in the table below

KPI - 11 Target Performance Performance
2007/08 2006/07

Gearing - Debt/RCV? <83% 712 3% 71 3%

Cash interest cover? >212 253 275

! Each KPI is defined in the Appendix on page 47
2 Definition of terms 15 contained In the Appendix on page 47

Customer Service
The Company measures its services to customers in three key areas

- The Overall Performance Assessment prowded by Ofwat
- The DG indicators provided by Ofwat
~ Dnnking Water Quality

KPI-2  The Overall Performance Assessment
Target Performance 2006/07
To be in the upper quartile of performance for all water comparies Placed 4th out of 22 companies

The Overall Performance Assessment for 2007/08 will be pubhshed by Ofwat after the Report and Accounts have been completed and
therefore the performance shown above 1s for 2006/07
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Operating and Financial Review
Current Development and Performance

KPi-3 DG Serwice Indicators

The DG service indicators data shown below is as recorded by the Company for 2007/08 and will be reported to Ofwat in the annual
regulatory June Return

DG Service Indicator Target Performance Performance
2007/08 2006/07

DG2 No of properttes at nsk of inadequate pressure <120 66 90
DG3 Unplanned interruptions to supply =03 014 023
DG4 Population subject to hosepipe bans Nil Nil Nil
DG6 Billing contacts - answered within 5 days 100% 100% 100%
DG7 Written complainis - answered within 10 days 100% 100% 100%
DG8 Bills for metered customers - no receiving bill based on meter reading 100% 100% 100%
DG9 Telephone contact - no of calls abandoned =25% 4 2% 6 2%

- all ines busy <07% Q3% Nil

in all categones Ofwat assessed the Company as having good performance for 2006/07 The Ofwat assessments for 2007/08 will not
be published until September, but the results recorded by the Company meet the critena for being assessed as good

KPt-4  Water Qualty
The Company carnes out an exhaustive programme of testing to ensure that water of the highest quality 15 suppled to customers

The table below shows the percentage number of samples which pass the strct standards set out in the Water Supply (Water Quality)
Regulations

Water Quality Target Performance Performance
2007 2006
Comptiance samples passing standards 99 90% 9997% 99 96%

The water quality performance ndicator relates to the calendar year

Operating Efficiency

Ofwat publsshes a report each year which includes its assessment of the comparative operating efficency of all water companies

i England and Wales using econometnc modelling Companies are put in bands A to E according to their performance for both
operating and capital maintenance efficency, A being the top band The latest report published s for the financial year 2006/07, which
showed that Portsmouth Water was assessed as the top performing company and in the top bands for both operating and capital
mantenance expenditure In the medium term this benefits customers through relatively lower prices and the Company intends to
maintain its position in the efficiency rankings

KPI -5 Efficiency
Target Performance 2006/07

To be ranked in Band A for Operating Efiicency Operating Efficiency Band A
To be ranked in Band A for Capital Maintenance Effioency Caputal Maintenance Efficiency Band A




Portsmouth Water Report & Accounts 2008

Operating and Financial Review
Current Development and Performance

Capatal Investment
The Company made good progress with the five year caprtal programme agreed with the Regutator for the period 2005 to 2010
Details of progress are shown in the table below

Capital Programme Agreed Outcome

Infrastructure Assets
Renewal of 25km of mains each year Since Apnl 2005, the Company has renewed an average of
24 6km per year

Water Quality
Installation of membrane filtration plants to mimimise the nsk of
cryptospondium at

- Rwver Itchen Completed Summer 2007

- Soberton Will be completed in late Spring 2008

- fishbourne will be completed in late Spring 2008

Remedial work on trunk mains in the Company s largest supply area to A smalt amount of work stifl to be carned out, but wilt be
reduce the risk of discoloured water incidents complete by the end of 2008

The wnstallation of blending facilities at sources at risk from increasing Will be completed in 2009

nitrate levels

Optional Water Meters

It was antiapated that 2,200 domestic customers would wish to switch In the 3 years to March 2008, over 13,000 customers had
from an unmeasured to a measured supply opted to switch, an average of 4,300 per year

Gross capital investment during the year was £12 Om {2007 - £14 8m) and included £4 8m (2007 - £4 1m) on infrastructure renewals
After recemng capital contnbutions and nfrastructure charges of £0 8m, net capital expenditure was £11 2m (2007 - £13 9m) The
chart below shows the level of net capital investment over a six year period n outiurn prices

Net Capital Expenditure

The major elements of expenditure in the year related to

— Mains renewed - 27km (2007 - 26 Okm) were renewed at a cost of £4 8m The programme allowed for at the last Determination 1s
now close to being met

— Membrane plants - work 1s nearing completion at two sites The expenditure duning the year was £4 Om and the full cost of the two
plants will be £6 9m

- Havant Thicket Winter Storage Reservoir - the Company has started planning for a winter storage reservonr, which should help ensure
security of water supplies well into the future In order to obtain planning permission for this scheme, considerable environmental
studies and public consultation has to be undertaken, which requires a range of design options and iImpact assessments |n 2007/08
this work resulted 1n expenditure of £0 6m

Water Resources - Outlook for 2008

As detailed on page 5, nearly 90% of water supplied to customers 1s from groundwater springs, boreholes and wells which abstract
from the underground chalk of the South Downs Groundwater levels are therefore cnitical to mantatning supphes to customers The
Company has for many years monitored the groundwater levet at Idsworth Well, Rowlands Castle, which 15 unaffected by abstraction
and s representative of groundwater conditions in the South Downs chalk
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Operating and Financial Review
Current Development and Performance

The rainfall for the year 2007/08 1s as shown in the chart below

Rainfall at Havant 2007/08
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Despite the rainfall in the winter of 2008 being less than the long term average, the groundwater of the South Downs chalk, as
measured at Idsworth Well, received recharge during the winter and, by May, was close to the long term average This is outhned on
the two year graph below, which includes the thirty year long term average and the drought year of 1976, when the Company last
imposed a hosepipe ban

Idsworth Well
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— 200708 ——— 2006/07 197576 ——— Long Term Average

Water resources are therefore expected to be suffient to meet peak demands in the summer of 2008 and a hosepipe ban is not
expected in our area of supply However, the Company has used its newsletter, website and press releases to stress to customers the
need to be conservative in therr use of water

Long Term Resource Planning

The Company has recently published its Draft Water Resources Management Plan for public consultation The plan examines the hkely
key influences on the demand for water from customers and on the Company’s ability to meet that demand The plan also dentifies
the actions required to ensure that the supply/demand balance 1s met A number of key assumptions were made

— The number of domestic households in the Company's area of supply will grow from 281,600 n 2007 to over 348,000 by 2035
(Source - Expenan)

— There will be a nse In average year per capita consumption from 160 litresthead/day in 2007 to 174 itres/head/day in 2035 The
principal diver behind this movement will be the reduction of occupancy levels in households caused by a number of demographic
factors

— The peak demand dunng a dry summer 15 1 4 times that of average demand

Projections show that, whilst at average demand the Company has sufficient resources and treatment capacity untd 2030, there may
be insufficient capacity to meet summer peak demand by approximately 2015 To address this shortfall, the Company has developed a
twin track approach of demand management and additional sources of supply consisting of
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Operating and Financial Review
Current Development and Performance

— The development of a Farhington Washwater Recovery Plant in the AMP5 penod by 2011/12

— Imitating a Leakage Savings Programme which will reduce ieakage levels from the current target of 29 7 Ml/d to a new target of
26 7 Mli/d by 2014115

- Instigating a promotional Water Effitciency Programme which wall include sending aistern devices to all customers starting in
2010/11 The programme will be repeated on a five-yearly basis as the devices only have a short life expectancy

- Beginning a 25 year programme of compulsory meterning for all domestic households, where practicable, beginming 1n 2010/11 The
Company plans a targeted programme which will minimise the overall costs of meter installation

- Developing additional boreholes at Lavant and Brickkiln Water Treatment Works within the currently icensed abstraction mits by
2014/15

— Promoting a programme of retrofit fitting of dual flush devices in toilets from 201516

— Continuing the development of Havant Thicket Winter Storage Reservorr for completion by 2021

Leakage

Leakage for the year was recorded at an average of 29 6MUd, which was within the leakage target of 28 7Mi/d The leakage targets
were set cut in the Company’s Business Flan for the last Pencdic Review and agreed by Ofwat as part of the Final Determiation in
2004

KPI-6 Leakage

Target Performance 2007/08
Average leakage of 29 7MI/d Average leakage of 29 6MI/d
Employees

The Company employs 222 people and beleves it recrits and retains the nght people which 1s key to the successful performance of
the business

The Company 1s firmly committed to the development of its employees and that they should all have oppartunities to reach their full
potential and, as a result, a number during the year have undertaken Degrees, HNC's and NVQ's, along with associated professional
qualifications

In line with this objective the Company fully supports the principle of Modern Apprenticeships, for example, all new employees within
Customer Services aged under 25 are employed though the Modern Apprenticeship scheme which leads to a minimum NVQ level 2
qualification

A key part of staff development 15 the Company involvement with the Institution of Water Officers (WO} The IWO 15 a professional
body whose purpose 1s to promote the advancement of knowledge within the water industry To this end, Area and National
Committees organise meetings, seminars, technical visits and conferences, as well as a vanety of social events These activities provide
a shop window for the latest technological developments in the industry and a forum for the discussion of major topics The Company
encourages its staff to belong to the IWO and gain the henefit for both therr personal and professicnal development by attending
these events

Staff turnover, excluding retirees was 8 1% in 2008 (2007 8 2%), which compares favourably with the national average which was
15 5% in 2006 {Source — EEF Absence and Rehabilitation Survey 2007)

Total absence (days per employee per year) has remained at just under 4 5 The figure of 4 48 compares with 4 38 for last year and 1s
below the average for private companies of the same size at 7 2 (Source CIPD Annual Survey Report 2007)

Health and Safety

Health and safety of employees is fundamental to the success of the business and the Company 1s committed to achieving high
standards across the organisation It has been S years since the Company embarked on a mission to improve its health and safety
culture and therefore the record in this area To achieve the imitial step change the Company put health and safety at the top of the
agenda and from the Board down has made 1t a ugh prionty

Last year saw the Company implement a number of campatgns and imitiatives, aimed at increasing staff awareness of health and safety
issues These included wibration and audio assessments, poster campaigns, tool box talks along with training 1n safety awareness and
manual handling

The graph below portrays a positive picture in respect of the improvement in the Company’s health and safety performance, notably a
fall in total acadents to a third of what they were in 2003 The improvement since 2003 reinforces the Company's decision to rewitalise
health and safety and the commitment of time and resources into that area
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Total Accidents

The efforts of all employees were rewarded in March 2008, when the Company recewved a Gold Award for occupational health and
safety from RoSPA for the third consecutive year
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Operating and Financial Review
Corporate Responsibility

Environmental Performance
The Company recognises its impact on the environment and seeks to carry out its activities in a sustanable manner, which 1s
highlighted by the initiatives shown below

Conservation

The Company's total licensed area of supply covers an attractive part of Southern England between the South Downs and the coastal
areas of Hampshire and West Sussex It includes the histonc cities of Portsmouth and Chichester, and the pepular holiday resorts of
Bognor Regis, Selsey and Hayling Island The harbours of Portsmouth, Langstone, Chichester and Pagham have a number of important
environmental designations under the EU Habitats Directive and are popular water activity venues

Biodwersity Action Plan

The Company's policy Is to conserve and enhance the natural enviranment of its land and water areas and to preserve histonc buildings
and equipment, so far as Is consistent with the primary duty of providing a sufficient supply of wholesome water at reasonable cost
Where possible, the Company explores opportunities to encourage recreational use

Sustainable Procurement

In procuring goods and services, the Company has a policy which seeks to ensure that ts impact on the environment 1s minimised
This includes the use of low sulphur content diesel fuel, timber from replanted forests and predominantly recycled matenal for
reinstatement

Specific Environmental Projects

The Company has been involved in three environmental investigations into the impact of water abstraction on species identified by
the Habitats Directive The mvestigations at the River Itchen, Chichester Harbour and Langstone Harbour are covered in more detatl on
page 18

Prosecution

in early 2007, an incxdent occurred at the River Itchen Treatment Works which resulted in polyaluminium chlonde being distributed into
a tnbutary of the River Itchen None of the chemical reached the main river but some fish died In 2007/08 the Company received a
fine of £10,000 The Company has taken action to avoid this happening in the future

Water Efficiency
The Company has continued, through various channels of communication such as its newsletter and website, to promote the need for
the efficient use of water, both by domestic and commercal customers Speafic iIniiatives have included

Cistern Devices
Approximately 10,000 'Save-a-Flush’ bags were 1ssued to customers during the year

Measured Customers

All new praperties are charged on the basis of a metered supply and all customers opting to install a meter receved a leaflet, 'Saving
Water at Home,’ to ensure that customers most hikely to benefit from water efficiency are reminded of the advantages, and each
customer receives two savaflush bags

Commercial Water Audits
A leaflet entitled *Saving Water in Your Business’ 1s included on the Company website

in-House Efficiency Study
A senes of inttiatives at the Company's Head Office has resulted in an overall saving since 2004 of 50% of previous water usage

Work in the Community

Amenities and Recreation

The Company’s education partnership with Staunton Country Park has continued to grow As well as providing the “Water Is Life’
themed education programme for local schools a “Water 1s Life Trail’ for visitors to the park was launched The water trail 15 designed
to help educate children and parents visiting the Park about the importance of water as a resource and encourage them to be more
water efficient The trail takes the form of a walk within the park searching for water information boards which help to answer simple
questions

Charitable Trust Fund
Since 2004 the Company has been supporting a Charitable Trust fund, which aims to provide assistance for customers who have
difficulty paying their bills

Drinking Water Botiles
The Company has continued to promote the benefits to children of dninking water and as part of our "Water for Health’ imtiative we
have offered a drinking water bottle at the subsidised cost of 15p per bottle for every child in a {ocal primary, infant and junior school
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The Water Bottles for Schools offer has gone from strength to strength with over 20,000 delivered last year and which has seen nearly
160,000 water bottles being delvered through the schools to our local children over the last five years

Community Talks
Employees continue to give community talks to local schools, colleges, clubs and groups such as Age Concern, Rotary and the
Women's Institute To cope with the increasing demand a community talk a team has been set up with volunteers from the Company,

Festwals and Fairs

The Company, once again, sponsored the Pnmary Schools Science Fair which 1s promoted by the Portsmouth and South East Hampshire
Business and Education partnership The three-day event held within the historic Dockyard utilising the HMS Warmor and Action
Stations to house the exhibitor's stands saw over 1,200 children from local schools visiting the exhibits

The Company demonstrations this year incduded water treatment and how different filters work, the sampling process and firushed off
with a short sesston on the need for all of us to conserve water

The Company also played an active part in the Water Festivals of Hampshire and West Sussex This involved a tour of the River Itchen
Treatment works, a week of water experiments for visitors at Staunton Country Park and a stand at Arundel promoting water efficiency

ABQVE Rltrabon expenment during Sir George
Staunton Country Park Saence Week

FARLEFT “Water s Lie Tral Board at Sir
George Staunton Country Park

LEFT Visitor completing the "Water s Life Trail’
at Sir George Staunton Country Park
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Cautionary statement regarding forward-looking statements

This section should be read in ¢conjunction with the financial statements and notes thereto included elsewhere in this Annual Report
This Annual Report contans certain forward-looking statements with respect to the finanaial conditron, results of operation and
busmess of Portsmouth Water

Statements that are not histoncal facts, including statements about Portsmouth Water's belefs and expectations, are forward-looking
statements Words such as ‘believes’, ‘anttapates’, “expects’, ‘intends’, ‘seeks’ and ‘plans’ and similar expressions are intended to
identify forward-looking staterments, but are not the exclusive means of identifying such statements These statements are based on
current plans, estimates and projections and, therefore, undue reliance should not be placed on them Forward-looking statements
speak only as of the date they are made, and 1t should not be assumed that they have been rewised or updated in the hght of new
information or future events

The Company will continue to focus on service dehivery to customers It will aim to remain at the efficency frontier for operating and
capital maintenance expendrture and complete its AMP4 (nvestment programme

Financial Performance will be influenced by the price limits set by the Regulator in 2004, which, for the five year period to 2010, are as
follows

2005/06 2006/07 2007/08 2008/09 2009/10
% increase above inflation 07 06 15 25 10

Capital expenditure in 2008/09 will be £14 3m (2008 - £12 0sm), and will include £2 9m for blending fachties to deal with nitrates
Expenditure will reduce to £8 4m in 2009/10

Energy costs represent almost 10% of total operating costs The current electncity contract comes to an end in October 2008, and
there remains great uncertainty as to the movement of prices and the impact on the business

As a result of these factors, the Company anticipates that debt will nse from the March 2008 level of £79 Om to £85 Om i 2009
before falling to £84 7m in 2010 The increase in debt will be met by existing loan facilities It 1s antipated that, by 2010, net debt to
RCV will be approximately 77 7%

LEFT Official opening of the River
ltchen Works Membrane Filtration Plant
by Or Richard Sturt, Chairman of the
Consumer Council for Water Southern

BELOW The River lichen Works
Membrane Filtration Plant
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Operating and Financial Review
Risks and Uncertainties

The Company identifies nsks under six main headings - Operational, Water Quality, Financal, Environmental, Regulatory and

Health and Safety of Employees Indwmidual risks facing the Company are identified and recorded in a risk reqister For each risk the
consequences, impact and hkelhood of failure are identified, together with the management controls in place The register also clearly
allocates management responsibility and whether any further actions are required to control the risks

The Board rewiews the nsk register and the controls established to mitigate these risks on an annval basis It also receives regular
reports on operational matters, including a monthly review of water quality matters directly with the Water Quahty Manager and
a quarterly review of health and safety matters with the Personnel and Safety Manager The Directors also recewve reports from
independent regulatory bodies, which comment on the performance of the core water business

The Audit Committee meets at least three times a year, monitors the effectiveness of the systems which are in place and reports to the
Board as a whole

The key operational risks facing the Company are the loss of a treatment works or part of the mains network, which would result
in a falure to supply water to customers To mitigate this risk, the supply netwark has been enhanced over several years to connect
different supply areas, such that in most situations water can be transferred to compensate for a fallure at a treatment works The
Company also has a fully documented Emergency Plan which 1s imitiated in the event of an incident, mpacting erther its ability to
supply water to the public or resulting n a water quality 1ssue

Water quality 1s monitored by a comprehensive sampling regime in accordance with DWI standards Furthermore, a telemetry system
linked to all treatment works provides an alarm if there 1s a failure of equipment The Company also maintains two days’ storage of
treated water in service reservorrs to provide sufficent time for any water quality 1ssues at treatment works to be rectified before supply
to customers In addition, 1t has membrane filtration at three treatment works considered most at nisk from cryptospondium being
present in the raw water and will commission additional plants at two more works by the summer of 2008

The nisk of financial toss 15 addressed through comprehensive insurance cover for a range of risks, mcduding damage to property,
public and employee hability, fraud and terronsm A system of internal controls I1s in place to manage the nisks, the details of which
are included in the Statement on Corporate Governance on pages 24 to 26 In early 2007, the Auditors conducted a special review of
the Company’s internal control systems The review did not reveal any significant weaknesses A disaster recovery plan 15 alse in place
to enable the Company to operate in the event of an incident disrupting its computer systems At a remote site ten miles from its
Head Office, the Company has an addrtional mainframe computer, which 1s ‘backed up’ every evening, and several workstations for
employees to operate

The major environmental risk faced by the Company at the present time I1s a potential loss of abstraction licence resulting from
measures that may be required by the EA to allow the UK to comply with the European Habitats Directive Investigations have been
carried out into the impact of abstraction by the Company at a number of sites covered by the Habnats Directive

A study into the sustainability of abstraction from the River ttchen 1s complete and options have been reviewed with the EA and
Southern Water for minimising the potential impact of abstraction on salmon migration, southern damselfly and invertebrates The EA
have made their decisions on the changes they require in the abstraction of water by both Portsmouth Water and Southern Water who
also have an abstraction upstream of the Portsmouth faciity The full implication of this decision has yet to be assessed but could result
1n some of the measures required to address the potential supply/demand imbalance in 2020 identified on pages 12 and 13 being
brought forward

Chichester and Langstone Harbours are Special Protection Areas (SPA) under the Habitats Directive A comprehensive ecological and
hydrological study carried out by the Company examined the effects on Chichester Harbour and its wildife of operating the Company’s
Fishbourne source within the existing abstraction hicence The study has focused particularly on the significance of an adeguate
freshwater flow into the Harhour for wading birds and on maintaining a habitat for the rare Desmoulins Whorl Snail Another

study conducted by the EA considered the importance of freshwater flows into Langstone Harbour from the Springs at Havant and
Bedhampton The EA has announced s conclusions on these licences and the Company believes the required changes will have httle
impact on its abihity to match supply and demand

The flooding n vanous parts of the UK during the summer of 2007 has prompted several national reports Whilst the Company was
not affected in 2007, 1t has put in hand a thorough review of company response and contingency plans together with a fresh look at
the vulnerability of key assets

Regulatory risk relates to decisions taken by Ofwat at the five yearly price review and the potental failure to meet the monitening plan
agreed with Ofwat, containing targets for the period 2005 to 2010 for the capital programme, customer service and leakage Failure to
meet the monitoring plan targets could result In Ofwat taking action, including financial penalties The last price review was completed
in 2004, for the period 2005 to 2010, and the next review wll be in 2009, for the period 2010 to 2015 The price review 15 conducted
in an open and transparent manner and the Company actively participates in the process The performance against the monitoring
plan 1s reviewed on a monthly basis by the Board or the Executive Directors The performance against the measures in the monitoring
plan are discussed on pages 10 to 11
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The health and safety of employees is taken very sencusly and a number of intiatives have been introduced over several years to reduce
the number of accidents and the impact of injury

These include

- A Health and Safety Committee

- A nsk assessment programme that has seen over 500 assessments produced

- A system of workplace inspection ensuring that all manned premises are inspected at least twice per year

- Specific traiming for those at high nisk of injury
- Alimited free physiotherapy service for employees to deal with injunes

1A UM

N J Roadnight N Smith
Managing Director Finance Director

Computer generated image of what Havant Thicket Winter Storage Reservoir might look like when completed
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Company Information

Registered Office
PO Box 8

West Street
Havant

Hampshire

POS LG

Telephone 023 9249 9888
Facsimile 023 9245 3632
Website www portsmouthwater co uk

Company Number 2536455
Company Secretary Chrnistopher Hardyman ACIS

Facts and Figures

Area of Supply 868 km!?
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Number of Properties Served 299,000
Length of Mains 3,278 km
Average Daily Cutput 178 M
Auditors

Saffery Champness

Lion House

Red Lion Street
London WCIR 4GB

Bankers

National Westmnster Bank plc
PO Box 34

15 Bishopsgate

London EC2P 2AP

Insurance Brokers
AON Limited
Richmond House
College Street
Southampton
Hampshire SO14 3PS
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Area of Supply

Portsmouth Water has been supplying water to Portsmouth and the surrounding area since 1857 The area supphed by the Company
extends through South East Hampshire and West Sussex from the River Meon in the West to the River Arun in the East encompassing

868 square kilometres

The Company provides ligh quality public water supplies to a domestic population of 644,000, as weli as many important industries,
large defence establishments and varied commercial businesses
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Directors’ Report

The Directors have pleasure in presenting their Report and
Accounts for the year ended 31 March 2008

Principal Activity and Business Raview

The Company 15 a water supplier operating under an Instrument
of Appointment granted by the Secretary of State for the
Environment under the Water Industry Act 1991

Water 1s supplied to 662,000 domestic and commercal
customers in an area of 868 square kilometres in Hampshire and
West Sussex through a mains network of 3,278 kilometres

The Company's Area of Supply 15 shown on page 21 of this
report

A detailed review of operations for the year is provided 1n the
Chairman'’s Statement and the Operating and Financial Review on
pages 4 to 19

Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies

A detalled review of the Company's financial nsk management
objectives and the polioes employed are set out in the Operating
and Financial Review an page 8 and in note 18 to the accounts
on page 41

Financial Results and Dividends

The Company’s profit before taxation amounts to £8 369m
(2007 - £10 721m) After deducting £0 147m for taxation (2007
- £2 596m), a profit of £8 222m has been transferred to reserves
(2007 - £8 125m})

The Directars are recommending the payment of a final dividend
of £2 088m (2007 - special £0 147m - final £1 640m)

Fixed Assets

Capital expenditure on tangible fixed assets was £12 033m (2007
- £14 823m), including £4 775m on infrastructure renewals
(2007 - £4 117m} Information relating to these and other
changes in fixed assets 1s shown i note 10 to the accounts on
page 38

The Directors are of the opinion that the current market value
of the land and buildings included in tangible fixed assets 15 i
excess of the value shown in the balance sheet

As they are heid for operational purposes, no professional
valuation has been obtained and the excess has not, therefore,
been quantified

Board of Directors
The Directors who held office at 31 March 2008, all of whom
served throughout the year, are shown on page 3

Mr R L Sullivan and Mr R J Tennant, who retire by rotation,
offer themselves for re-election They do not have service
contracts with the Company

The interests of the Directors in Group shares are detailled in the
Report on Remuneration on page 27

The Company maintains appropnate Directors’ indemaity
Insurance

Creditor Payment Policy

The Company does not intend to follow any specific code or
standard mn relation to payment practice In the absence of
dispute, bills will be settled in accordance with the suppliers’
terms Where such terms are considered unreasonable, the
Company will seek o agree alternative payment arrangements to
suit both parties At 31 March 2008, the Company's creditor days
were 10 {2007 - 28)

Substantial Shareholder
At 31 March 2008, Portsmouth Water Holdings Limited owned
the entire voting capital of the Company

Regulatory Accounts

A set of accounts for regulatory purposes s required by the Water
Services Regulation Authonity These accounts relate solely to the
regulated water supply business and copies may be obtained on
request from the Registered Offie

Employees

Direct communication with employees 15 maintamned through
the Company in-house newsletter In addition, Joint Consultative
Committees meet regularly and ensure effective communication
with employee representatives

The Directors consider health and safety to be an important issue
within the Company, with the active participation of employee
safety representatives taking place through the safety commuttee
Dunng the year, a number of initiatives were undertaken, which
ensured that health and safety continues to maintain its high
profile throughout the organisation

The Company has, for the third consecutive year, submitted an
apphication to the RoSPA Occupational Health and Safety awards
scheme and has again received the Gold Award

The Company has adopted a policy which complies with the
Disability Discnrination Act 1995 Every consideration is given to
apphcations for employment from disabled persons, where the
job requirements may be adequately covered by a handicapped
or disabled person Employees who become disabled during
employment are given continued employment where possible and
opportunities for training and career development are provided
for all disabled employees

The pension scheme to which the Company's employees belong
makes provision for retirement due to ill-health or disablement

Environment

The Company 1s most aware of its obhigations to both customers
and the environment In recent years, i1t has adopted a more
active approach to environmental 1ssues and further information
15 set out in the Operating and Fmancial Review on pages 5 1o 19

Donations

The Company actively supports the Water Industry chanty
WaterAd and, during the year, customers were nwited to make
donations to WaterAud at the tme of paying their water bills The
Company also makes donations to a Charitable Trust Fund, which
aims to provide assistance for customers who have difficulty
paying their bills Due to the fact that the Fund 15 tn credit it was
again not necessary to make any donations this year (2007 - ml)
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Licence Requirement

In accordance with its Instrument of Appointment under the
Water Industry Act 1991, the Directors are of the opinion that the
Company 15 in comphance with paragraph 3 1 of Condition 'K’ of
that Instrument

Auditors

The Auditors, Saffery Champness, have expressed therr willingness
to continue in office and a resolution providing for therr
reappaintment will be proposed at the Annual General Meeting

In so far as the Directors are aware

— there 1s no relevant audit information of which the Company’s
auditors are unaware, and

- the Directors have taken all steps that they ought to have
taken to make themselves aware of any relevant audit
information and to establish that the auditors are aware of that
tnformation

-

By order of the Boar

C Hardyman
Secretary
Havant

30 May 2008
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Corporate Governance

The Directors are commtted to high standards of corporate
governance and support the principles set out in the Combined
Code, which was 1ssued in 2006 and replaces the onginal code
issued in 2003 This report and the Report on Remuneration
describe how the Company complies with those principles

COMPLIANCE
The Company has complied throughout the year with the
provisions of the Combined Code, other than as indicated below

As the ultimate shareholders of the Company have representation
at Board meetings, it 15 not therefore considered necessary to
have a senior independent non-executive Director {code provision
A33)

In accordance with the Company's Articles of Association, the
Managing Director 15 not required to retire by rotation and seek
re-electron {code provision A 7 1)

The remuneration package of the executive Directors did not, for
the current year, mclude a performance related element From
April 2008 1t 15 intended that their remuneration will include

a performance related element, which will be based upon the
achievement of agreed financial and customer service targets
{code provision B 1 1)

DIRECTORS

The Board

The Board of Directors retains full and effective control of the
Company and s collectively responsible for setting its strategy,
ensufing appropriate resources are In place to meet objectives
and monttorning performance

The non-executive Directors play a fult part by constructively
challenging and contributing to the development of strategy
They are responsible for determining appropriate levels of
remuneration for the executive Directors and for recommending
new appointments to the Board

The members of the Board and the roles of each Director
are shown on page 3, together with biographical notes The
Charmanis Mr T M Lazenby and the Managing Director Is
Mr N | Roadmight The Board has not appointed a senior
independent non-executive Director

The Board meets monthly and has a schedule of matters
specifically reserved to it for decision 1t has control of the
Company, but delegates the day to day conduct of business to
the executive Directors and their senior management colleagues
However, there are a number of matters which must only be
decided by the Board as a whole, including strategy, all contracts
over £150,000, dmdend policy and certain regulatory matters

Committee membership, number of formal meetings held dunng
the year and attendance are shown in the following table

Number of Number of
meetings meetings
held attended
Audit
R ) Tennant (Charman) 4 4
T M Lazenby 4 4
R L Sullivan 4 4
Remuneration
R L Sullwan {Chawrman) 1 1
T M Lazenby 1 1
R ) Tennant 1 1
Full Board
J E Cogley 1 11
T M Lazenby (Chawrman) 11 11
A R Neve " 1
N J Roadnight 1 1A
N Smith 11 1
R L Sullivan 1 1"
R J Tennant 11 1

The Nomination Commuttee did not meet dunng the year

The Chairman talks with and holds meetings on an informal basis
with the other non-executive Directors without the executives
present The non-executive Directors meet without the Charman
present annually to appraise his performance

There were no circumstances ansing dunng the year where 1t was
necessary to record unvesolved concerns in the Board mmutes

Chairman and Managing Director
The roles of Chairman and Managing Director are separate with a
clear dmision of responsibilities between them

The Chairman is responsible for leading the Board and ensuring
its effectiveness He facilitates the contnbution of the non-
executive Directors and the relationship between them and the
executive Directors

Board Balance and Independence

The Board comprises a non-executive Chairman, four executive
Directors and two other non-executive Directors The non-
executive Directors bring a wide range of expentence and
knowledge to the Board, which complements the expertise of
their executive Director colleagues They are all considered to be
ndependent of management

The Board considers that 1ts structure achteves an appropnate
balance of authority at the head of the Company, such that no
one indmvidual has an unfettered power of decision

Appointments to the Board

The Nomination Committee,which did not meet dunng the

year, comprises the Managing Director, Mr N J Roadnight,

and the three independent non-executive Directors, Mr T M
Lazenby {Chairman), Mr R L Sullvan and Mr R } Tennant Itis
responsible for recommending new appointments to the Board
Decisions regarding the appointment of Directors are taken by the
Board as a whole
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The terms and condrtions of appointment of non-executive
Directors are available for inspection

Information and Professional Development

Information 15 arculated to the Board in a timely fashion to
ensure that all Directors are fully briefed on all issues ansing at
Board meetings They are free 1o seek any further information
considered necessary

All Directors have access to the senaces of the Company Secretary
and may take independent professional advice at the Company’s
expense in the furtherance of their duties

Performance Evaluation

During the year, a formal performance evaluation of the Board,

its committees and 1ts Directors was undertaken Each Director
was required to complete a questionnaire, the responses to
which were reviewed by the Board as a whole The non-executive
Directors also met without the executives to consider the
performance of the Board and 1ts committees, and without the
Chairman to appraise his performance The executive Directors are
subject to a formal appraisal of performance which 1s reviewed by
the Chawrman The Chairman also meets with each non-executive
Director to review indwidual performance The evaluation
concluded that the Board and its committegs operated effectively,
and that each Director demonstrated commitment to the role and
performed effectively

Re-Election

in accordance with the Company’s Articles of Association, all
Directors, with the exception of the Managing Director, are
required to retire by rotation and one third of the Board must
seek re-election each year All Directors are subject to election at
the first Annual General Meeting after their appointment

REMUNERATION
Policy and practice in relation to Directars’ remuneration 15 dealt
with in full in the Report on Remuneration on pages 27 and 28

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

Financial Reporting

The Board believes that the Annual Report and Accounts

play an important part in presenting a clear, balanced and
understandable assessment of the Company's position and
prospects This 1s supported by the Chairman’s Statement,
together with a more detalled analysis of operations and financial
matters in the Operating and Financial Review

Internal Control

The Directors are responsible for the Company’s system of
internal control and for rewewing its effectiveness Such a system
15 designed to minimise rather than eliminate the nisk of failure

to achieve business objectives and can only provide reasonable
and not absolute assurance agamnst material misstatement or loss
There has been no change in the system of internal control during
the year

The Board 15 of the view that there 1s an ongoing process for
identifying, evaluating and managing the Company’s significant
nsks, that it has been in place for the year ended 31 March
2008 and up to the date of approval of the Annual Report and
Accounts, that it is regularly reviewed by the Directors and that
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it accords with the internal control guidance for Directors in the
Combined Code

The key procedures, which have been established with a view to
providing effective internal contro!, are as follows

Organisation

The Company’s activities are operated through a Board of
Directors with clearly defined reporting lines and delegation

of authonty The Directors meet at least monthly to consider a
schedule of matters required to be brought to them for decision
A standing sub-committee of the Board meets fortnightly for the
purpose of ensuning that full and effective control 5 maintained
over appropnate finanaial, regulatory and operational 1ssues

Budgetary Control

Each year the Directors approve an annual plan produced from

a comprehensive budgeting system Actual results are reported
against the approved plan on a monthly basis to provide a timely
and regular monitoring of performance

investment Appraisal

The Company has a dearly defined framework for assessing
capital expenditure needs and options Board approval is required
for any project exceeding a quanbified expenditure level

Business, Operational and Comphance Risks

The Company assesses the nsks facing its business on an
ongoing basis and has identified them under six main headings
- operational, water quality, financial, environmental, regulatory
and health and safety of employees They are subject to regular
reporting to the Directors The Board reviews the controls
established to mitigate these nsks and 1ts insurance requirement
on an annua! basis The Directors also receive reports from
independent regulatory bodies, which comment on the
performance of the core water business

At the April 2008 Board meeting, the Directors carried out therr
annual assessment for the year to 31 March 2008, including
consideration of events since the year end

Audit Committee and Auditors

The Audit Committee comprises the three non-executive Directors
Mr R J Tennant (Chairman), Mr T M Lazenby and Mr R L
Sullivan

in May 2007 Mr T M Lazenby stepped down as Charrman of the
Audit Committee and was replaced by Mr R J Tennant Mr T M
Lazenby continues as a member of the Audit Committee

It meets at least three times during the year The purpose of

the Commuttee 1s to ensure the preservation of good financial
practices throughout the Company, to monitor that controls are
in force to ensure the integnity of those practices, to review the
intenm and annual financial statements and to provide, by way of
timely meetings, a hne of communication between the Board and
the external auditors

The Commuttee has formal Terms of Reference, which deal

with its authorities and duties It has pnimary responsibility for
making a recommendation on the appointment, reappointment
and removal of the external auditors 1t also reviews annually
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arrangements by which staff of the Company may, in confidence,
raise concerns about possible improprieties in matters of financial
reporting or other matters

The Committee reviews the independence and objectwity of the
external auditors This includes reviewing the nature and extent
of non-audit services supplied by the external auditors to the
Company, seeking to balance ohjectivity and value for money
The only non-audit services provided duning the year were those
expected to be provided by the external auditors

The Commuittee does not consider that an internal audit function
i1s required for the Company due to the size and nature of the
business This recommendation 1s reviewed annually

GOING CONCERN

The Directors are satisfied that the Company has adequate
resources to continue In operational existence for the foreseeable
future For this reason, they continue to adopt the going concern
basis in prepanng the financial statements




Portsmouth Water Report & Accounts 2008

Report on Remuneration

This report has been prepared 1n accordance wath the Directors” Remuneration Report Regulations 2002 and the Listing Rules of the
Financial Services Authonty

INFORMATION NOT SUBJECT TO AUDIT

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee met anly once dunng the year to consider and approve, on behalf of the Board, the conditions of service
of the executive Directors of the Company It compnses the three mdependent non-executive Directors, Mr R L Sullivan (Chairman of
the Remuneration Committee), Mr T M Lazenby and Mr R J Tennant

The Level and Make-up of Remuneration

The objective 1s to attract, retain and motivate high calibre senior executives through pay arrangements which are competitive and fair
and reasonable for the responsibilities involved In addition to indwvidual performance, reference s made to pay levels in companes of
similar size and within the same industry

The remuneration package of the executive Directors, as reported in the accounts, did not include a performance related element From
Apnil 2008 1t 15 intended that therr salary will include a performance related element, which will be based upon the achievement of
agreed financial and customer service targets

All four executive Directors have one year service contracts with the Company, which are in accordance with the Combined Code None

of the executive Directors serves as a non-executive Director for another company The non-executive Directors do not have service
contracts

Fees payable to the non-executive Directors are determined by the Board as a whole and reflect the time, commitment and
responsibilities of the role

No Director 1s mvolved in deaiding his own remuneration

INFORMATION SUBJECT TO AUDIT

Directors’ remuneration 2008 2007
£000 £000
Total remuneration 558 531
Highest paid Director 153 147
Remuneration 1s analysed by Director below Total Total
Salary/Fees Benefits 2008 2007
£000 £000 £000 £000
Executive

} E Cogley 99 N 110 106
A R Neve 99 8 107 102
N J Roadnight 139 14 153 147
N Smith 104 14 118 114

Non-executive
T M Lazenby (Chairman) 30 - 30 24
R L Sullivan 20 - 20 19
R J Tennant 20 - 20 19
511 47 558 531

Fees paid in respect of Mr T M Lazenby are paid to Seamab Consultancy Lid
Benefits comprise company cars and medical insurance

Long-term incentive schemes
The Company does not operate any long-term performance linked bonus scheme

Share options

The Company does not operate an Executive Share Option Scheme

The Dyrectors” holdings of shares in South Downs Capital Limited, the ultimate parent undertaking, are detaded below and, n total,
represent 15% of the 1ssued share capital of that Company They have no interests in the shares of Portsmouth Water Limited

‘C’ Ordinary Shares

J E Cogley 30
A R Neve 30
N } Roadnight 48

N Smith 42
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Penstons

The Company participates in the Brockhampton Pension Scheme to provide defined benefits based pnimarnly on final pensionable pay
for its employees, including the executive Directors The maximum pension payable under this Scheme 1s 2/3 of final pensionable pay

Benefits in kind relating to company cars are considered to be part of pensionable pay for all employees under the Scheme

The executive Directors have accrued pension benefits under the Brockhampton Pension Scheme during the year as detailed below

Increase in Accumulated Accumulated

Accrued Pension Transfer Accrued Accrued

Dunng Year to Value of Pension at Pension at

31 March 2008 Increase 31 March 2008 31 March 2007

£000 £000 £000 £000

] E Cogley 2 27 64 €0
A R Neve 2 28 64 60
N J Roadmight 3 40 86 20
N Smith 2 25 52 48

The accumulated accrued pension is the leaving service benefit to which the Director 1s entitled if he were to leave service at the end of

the year

The increase In accrued pension excludes any increase for inflation

The transfer value has been calculated on the basis of actuanal advice in accordance with Actuanal Guidance Note GN11 The transfer
value of the increase 1s then reduced by the amount of each member’s contribution paid dunng the year

ey

By order of the Board

T M Lazenby
Chairman
Havant

30 May 2008




Statement of Directors’ Responsibilities

The Directors are responsible for prepanng the Annual Report and
the financial statements in accordance with applicable law and
United Kingdom Acceunting Standards

Company law in the United Kingdom requires the Directors to
prepare financial statements for each financial year which give a
true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company at the
end of the financial year and of the profit or toss of the Company
for that period In prepanng those financial statements, the
Directors are required to

— select suitable accounting pelicies and then apply them
consistently,

— make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and
prudent,

— state whether applicable accounting standards have been
followed, subject to any matenal departures disclosed and
explained in the financial statements, and

— prepare the finanaial statements on the going concern basis
unless it 1s inappropriate to presume that the Company will
continue In business

The Directors are responsible for

- keeping proper accounting records, which disclose with
reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the
Company and which enable them to ensure that the financial
statements comply with the Comparnies Act 1985,

- safeguarding the assets of the Company and hence for taking
reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and
other irregulanties, and

- the maintenance and integnity of the corporate and financial
information included on the Company's website Legislation
in the United Kingdom governing the preparation and
dissemination of financial statements may differ from
legislation in other junsdictions

Portsmouth Water Report & Accounts 2008
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Audit Report

Independent Auditors’ report to the members of Portsmouth Water Limited

We have audited the financial statements of Portsmouth Water
Limited for the year ended 31 March 2008, which comprise the
profit and loss account, the statement of total recognised gains
and losses, the balance sheet, the cash flow statement and the
related notes These financial statements have been prepared
under the historical cost convention and the accounting policies
set out therein  We have also audited the information in the
Report on Remuneration that 15 described as having been audited

Respective Responsibilities of Directors and Auditors

The Directors’ responsibilities for preparning the Annual Report
and the financial statements in accordance with United Kingdom
law and Accounting Standards (United Kingdom Generally
Accepted Accounting Practice) are set out in the Statement of
Directors’ Responsibilities

Our responstbility 1s to audit the financial statements and the
part of the Report on Remuneration to be audited in accordance
with relevant legal and regulatory requirements and International
Standards on Auditing (UK and freland)

This report 1s made solely to the Company’s members, as a body,
in accordance with Section 235 of the Companies Act 1985

Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state

to the Company’s members those matters we are required to
state to them in an Auditors’ Report and for no other purpose
To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or
assume responsibility to anyone other than the Company and
the Company’s members as a body, for our audit work, for this
report, or for the opinions we have formed

We report to you our opinion as to whether the financial
statements give a true and fair view and whether the financial
statements and the part of the Report on Remuneration to be
audited have been properly prepared in accordance with the
Companies Act 1985 and whether the information given in the
Directors’ Report is consistent with the financial statements
We also report to you if, In our opinion, the Company has not
kept proper accounting records, if we have not receved all the
information and explanations we require for our audit, or if
information specified by law regarding Directors’ remuneration
and other transactions is not disclosed

We also, at the request of the directors (because the Company
apphes the Finanaal Services Authonty Listing Rules as if it were
a listed company), review whether the corporate governance
statement reflects the Company's compliance with the mine
provisions of the 2006 FRC Combined Code specified for our
review by the bisting Rules of the Financial Services Authority,
and we report if it does not We are not required to consider
whether the Board's statements on internal control cover all
nsks and contrals, or form an opinton on the effectiveness of
the Company's corporate governance procedures or its nsk and
control procedures

We read other information contained in the Annual Report

and consider whether 1t 1s consistent with the audited financial
statements This other information comprises only the Directors’
Report, the unaudited part of the Report on Remuneration, the
Chairman’s Statement and the Operating and Financial Review
We consider the implications for our report if we become aware
of any apparent misstatements or matenal inconsistencies with

the financial statements Our responsibilities do not extend to any
other mformation

Basis of Audit Opinion

We conducted our audit In accerdance with International
Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland) 1ssued by the Auditing
Practices Board An audit includes examination, on a test basis, of
evidence relevant to the amounts and disclosures in the financal
statements and the part of the Report on Remuneration to be
audited It also includes an assessment of the significant estimates
and judgements made by the Directars in the preparation of the
financial statements, and of whether the accounting policies are
appropriate to the Company’s arcumstances, consistently applied
and adequately disclosed

We planned and performed our audit so as to obtain all the
information and explanations which we considered necessary in
order to provide us with sufficent evidence to give reasonable
assurance that the financial statements and the part of the
Report on Remuneration to be audited are free from material
misstatement, whether caused by fraud or other irregularity

or error In forming our opinion we also evaluated the overall
adequacy of the presentation of information in the financial
statements and the part of the Report on Remuneration to be
audited

Opmion

In our opinion

— the financial statements qive a true and fair view, In accordance
with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice,
of the state of the Company's affairs as at 31 March 2008 and
of 1ts profit for the year then ended,

- the financial statements and the part of the Report on
Remuneration to be audited have been properly prepared in
accordance with the Companies Act 1985, and

- thenformation given in the Directors’ Report is consistent with

efinancial statements for the year ended 31 March 2008

affer;‘Cha phess
Chartered Accountants
Registered Auditors
Lion House
Red Lion Street
London
WCIR 4GB
30 May 2008
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Profit and Loss Account
For the year ended 31 March 2008

Notes 2008 2007

£000 £000

{restated)

Turnover 2 33,906 33,042
Cost of sales {17,078) {16,406)
Gross profit 16,828 16,636
Net operating expenses 3 {9,243) (7,794)
Operating profit 7,585 8,842
(Loss)/profit on sale of fixed assets {183) 912
Profit on ordinary activities before interest 7.402 9,754
Interest recevable 5 4,331 3,612
Other finance income 28 2,851 2,688
14,584 16,054

Interest payable and similar charges 6 (6,215) (5,333)
Profit on ordinary activities before taxation 7 8,369 10,721
Taxation on profit on ordinary activities 8 {(147) {2,596}
Profit for the financial year 20 8,222 8,125

The profit and loss account has been prepared on the basis that all operations are continuing operations

Statement of Total Recognised Gains and Losses
For the year ended 31 March 2008

Notes 2008 2007

£000 £000

(restated)

Profit for the financial year 8,222 8,125
Actuanal gain/(loss) on pension scheme 28 7.602 (519
Deferred tax relating to actuanal {gain)/loss on pensicn scheme 17 {2,129) 155
Effect of change to corporation tax rate on pension asset {292) -
Total recognised gamns and losses relating to the year 13,403 7,761

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these accounts
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Balance Sheet
As at 31 March 2008

Note 2008 2008 2007 2007
£000 £000 £000 £000
(restated) {restated)
Fixed assets
Tangible assets 10 87,308 82,903
Investments 11 60,478 147,786 59,940 142,843
Current assets
Stocks 468 462
Debtors 12 4,049 3,720
Investments 13 4 4
Cash at bank and n hand 14 2,494 2,460
7,015 6,646
Creditors amounts faling due within one year 15 (18,016) (17,330
Net current habihities {11,001) (10,684)
Total assets less current liabilities 136,785 132,159
Creditors amounts falling due after more than one year 16 (77,239) (74,282)
Provisions for habilities 17 (8,344) (9,565)
Net assets excluding pension asset 51,202 48,312
Pension asset 28 21,584 15,280
Net assets including pension asset 72,786 63,592
Capital and reserves
Called up share capital 19 1,078 1,078
Share premium account 20 1,539 1,539
Capital redemption reserve 20 3,250 3,250
Profit and loss account 20 66,919 57,725
Shareholders’ funds 21 72,786 63,592

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these accounts

The accounts were authonsed for 1ssue and approved by the Board on 30 May 2008, and signed on its behalf by,

o o~

T M Lazenby
Chairman
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Cash Flow Statement
For the year ended 31 March 2008

Notes 2008 2008 2007 2007
£000 £000 £000 £000

Net cash inflow from operating activities 22 15,996 16,136
Returns on investments and servicing of finance
Interest received 3,780 3,156
Interest paid (3,257) 523 {2,869) 287
Taxation
UK corpeoration tax paid (687) {1,124
Payments for group relief (1,223) {1.910) {1,133) {2,257)
Capital expenditure and financial investment
Purchase of tangible fixed assets (12,914) {12,748)
Sale of tangible fixed assets 32 1,167
Capital contributions receved 753 (12,129) 945 (10,636)
Equity dividends paid (4,946} (4,579)
Cash {outflow) before management
of iquid resources and financing (2.466) (1,049
Management of liquid resources
(Purchase) of short term deposits (60) (50}
Financing
New lpans 2,500 1.500
{Decrease)/increase in cash in the year 23 {26) 401

The accompanying notes form an mtegral part of these accounts
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Notes to the Accounts

1 Accounting Policies

The accounts have been prepared under the histonical cost convention and in accordance with applicable United Kingdom Accounting
Standards (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice} which have been applied consistently, except for the treatment of
capital contributions as detailed in note 1 (¢

in view of the licence condrtions under which the Company operates as a water supplier, it has to publish information about its
annual results as if 1t were a company covered by the Listing Rules of the Financial Services Authonty, except where 1t 15 considered
inappropriate to do so Earnings per share disclosures required by FRS 22 are not presented as the Company 15 a wholly owned
subsidhary

The prinapa! accounting pohcies are as follows
(a) Turnover

Turnover, which excludes value added tax, represents the income receivable for goods and services provided to external customers in
the ordinary course of business It comprises the value of water suppled and other related charges Turnover from the regulated water
business includes amounts billed for the year, together with an estimation of amounts unbilled at the year end, for measured water
customers Unmeasured income bills are based on the rateable value of properties Measured income anses from customers who have
meters fitted at their premises and amounts billed, therefore, are based on actual water consumption The estimation of the amounts
unbilled at the year end uses a defined methodology based upon a measure of unbilled water consumed, which 1s calculated fram
histoncal customer data

(b} Fixed assets

(1) Infrastructure assets - mains

Infrastructure assets compnse a network of systems Expenditure on infrastructure assets relating to increases in capacity or
enhancement of the network and on maintaining the operating capability of the network i accordance with defined standards of
service 15 treated as an addition and included in tangible fixed assets at cost

The depreciation charge on infrastructure assets 1s the estimated level of annual expenditure required to maintain the aperating
capability of the network, based on an independently certified asset management plan

{ir) Other assets
Depreciation 1s provided on all other fixed assets with the exception of freehold land It1s calculated to write off the cost of assets less
estimated residual values over therr estimated useful economic lives using the straight Ine method Those lives are estimated as follows

Buildings and Reservoirs 100 years
Pumping Plant 15-25 years
Vehicles and Mobile Plant 5-7 years
Office Equipment 7 years

{c) Capital contributions

{)) Mains contributions

In certain circumstances third parties make non-returnable contributions towards the cost of specific infrastructure assets They are
treated as capital contributions and the Directors consider it appropriate that, in order to present a tiue and fair view, they should be
deducted frem fixed assets, as shown in note 10 to the accounts on page 38 In accordance with the Companies Act 1985 requirement
to include fixed assets at cost, such contnbutions would normally be treated as deferred income and released to the profit and loss
account over the useful Iife of the corresponding assets However, the assets to which they relate do not have determinable finite fives
and, accordingly, no basis exists on which to recognise those contnbutions as deferred income

(1) Infrastructure charges

Infrastructure charges are made in respect of new connections in accordance with Condition ‘C’ of the Instrument of Appointment
These charges are treated as capital contributions and deducted from fixed assets, as more fully explaned 1n note 1 {c}()) above

(d) Investments

investments are stated at the lower of cost or net reabsable value

{e) Stocks

Stocks of raw matenals are valued at the lower of cost or net realisable value In accordance with established practice in the water
industry, no value 1s placed upon the water in reservoirs, mains or In the course of treatment
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(f) Deferred taxation

Deferred tax 1s recognised on all iming differences where the transactions or events that give the Company an obligation to pay more
tax in the future, or the right to pay fess tax in the future, have occurred by the balance sheet date Deferred tax assets are recognised
when it 1s more likely than not that they will be recovered Deferred tax 1s measured using rates of iax that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the balance sheet date

The deferred tax balances have been discounted using a post-tax yield to matunty that could be obtaned at the balance sheet date on
government bonds with matunty dates similar to those of the deferred tax labitities

{q) Leases

All leases are regarded as operating leases Operating lease payments are charged to the profit and less account on a straight hine basis
over the peniod of the lease

(h) Pension costs and other post retirement benefits

Portsmouth Water Limited 15 the participating employer in the Brockhampton Pension Scheme This scheme s a defined benefit
scheme The assets of the scheme are held in a separate trustee administered fund

Pension scheme liabilities are measured on an actuanal basis using the projected unit method and are discounted to therr present value
using the AA corporate bond rate

Pension scheme assets are valued at market value at the balance sheet date The pension scheme surplus 1s recogrused in full on the
balance sheet

The deferred tax relating to a defined benefit asset is offset against the defined benefit asset and not mcluded with other deferred tax
habilities

Detailled information regarding the surplus and actuanal position of the scheme 1s given in note 28 to the accounts on pages 44 and
45

(1) Financial instruments

The Company’s financial instruments consist of loans and recevables, financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, available-for-
sale financial assets and held-to-maturity investments

When a financial asset or liability 1s recogmised initially 1t 1s measured at its fair value plus or minus transaction costs The Company
subsequently categonses financial instruments as follows

Fixed asset investments consist of loans to Group undertakings, which earn interest based on London Interbank rates and are classified
as loans and receivables They are measured at amortised ¢ost using the effective rate method

Other financial assets consist of short term bank deposits and are classified as financial assets at fawr value through the profit and loss
account They are measured at fair value

The Company's financia! habibiies consist of fixed rate borrowings in the form of perpetual debentures and an index linked loan
These instruments are classified as finanaal liabilities and are measured at amortised cost There are also vanable rate loans which are
measured at fair valve

Change in accounting policy

The Company has, for the first ime, included a debtor for unbilled measured income as at the year end date in these financial
statements, as mare fully explaed n note 1(a) above This represents a change in accounting policy and comparatwe figures have
been restated accordingly

The effect of this change in accounting policy was to,

() Increase turnover by £0 329m (2007 - £0 226m)

{1} Increase profits after taxation by £0 231m (2007 - £0 159m)

(i) Increase accrued income in the balance sheet by £2 273m (2007 - £1 944m}

() Increase net assets after provisson for tax in the balance sheet by £1 591m (2007 - £1 361m)

35
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2 Turnover 2008 2007
£000 £000

(restated)

Unmeasured supplies 21,546 20,720
Measured supplies 10,636 9,716
Bulk supply to Southern Water Services 530 940
Chargeable work 1,194 1,666
33,906 33,042

Turnover 1s wholly attnbutable to water supply and related actvities in the United Kingdom

3 Net operating expenses 2008 2007
£000 £000
Admunistrative expenses 9,506 7,955
Other operating income (263) {161)
9.243 7.794

4 Directors and employees
2008 2007
Employment costs £000 £600
Wages and salaries 5,593 5,484
Soaial security costs 448 435
Other pension costs (note 28) 2,304 1,153
8,345 7,072
Transferred to capital schemes (67) {106)
Net employment costs 8.278 6,966
2008 2007
Average numbers employed durning year Number Number
Cperations 143 154
Administration 73 71
216 225
2008 2007
Directors’ remuneration £000 £000
Total rermuneration 558 531
Highest paid Director 153 147

Further details relating to Directors’ remuneration are set out in the Report on Remuneration on pages 27 and 28 The nformation set
out in that Report which 1s subject to audit forms part of these financial statements

5 Interest receivable 2008 2007
£000 £000

Loan to Group company 4,223 3,532
Interest on short term deposits 78 61
Other interest recevable 30 19
4,331 3,612

6 Interest payable and similar charges 2008 2007
£000 £000

£66 5m loan - Interest 2,827 2,725
- Indexation 2,900 2,404

- amortisation of fees 57 57

- administration expenses 22 22

5,806 5,208

Other bank loans and overdraft 384 105
Debenture stocks 10 10
Other interest payable 15 10

6,215 5,333
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7 Profit on ordinary activities before taxation 2008 2007
£000 £000
Profit on ordinary activities Is after charging
Depreciation - infrastructure assets 3,633 3,527
- non infrastructure assets 3,027 2,694
Rates 2,267 2,214
Water abstraction charges 1,718 1,668
Auditors’ remuneration
Audit services - statutory audit 27 28
Non-audit services - regulatory reporting 16 17
- reporting on internal controls - 13
- taxation 3 1
- general advice 2 -
Fees in respect of the Brockhampton Pension Scheme
- statutory audit™ 2 2
Hire of plant and machinery 51 43
Other operating leases 345 345
* These fees are not pad by Portsmouth Water Limited
8 Taxation 2008 2007
£000 £000
{restated)
Current tax
United Kingdom corporation tax at 30% (2007 - 30%) 1,951 2,005
Adjustment in respect of prior penods (7) 21
1,944 2,026
Deferred tax
Onigination and reversal of timing differences 915 664
{Increase) in discount (141) (554)
Effect of removal of industnal buildings allowances {1,403} -
Effect of changes to corporation tax and capital allowance rates (592) -
Difference between pension cost charge and pension cost relief 153 460
Effect of change to corporation tax rate on pension asset (729) -
(1,797) 570
Tax on profit on ordinary activities 147 2,596
The tax charge for the year is lower {2007 - lower) than the standard rate of corporation tax in the UK of 30% The difference 1s
explained as follows
2008 2007
£000 £000
{restated)
Profit on ordinary activities before tax 8,369 10,721
Profit on ordinary activities multiphed by standard rate of corporation tax in the UK of 30% (2007 - 30%) 2,511 3,216
Effect of
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes 69 12
Caputal allowances for the penod n excess of depreciation (671} 477
Revenue items charged to capital 206 (966)
Rolled over chargeable gains - (274)
Difference between pension cost charge and pension cost relief (164) (460)
Adjustments to tax charge m respect of prior periods {7) 21
Current tax charge for year 1,944 2,026
9 Dividends 2008 2007
£000 £000
Equity Ordtnary/A’ Ordinary
Interim paid 2,422 2,715
Final paid 1,640 1,418
Special pad 147 338
4,209 4,471

The Directors are proposing the payment of a final dwidend of £2 088m for the year ended 31 March 2008 This dwvidend has not

been accounted for within the current year financial statements, as 1t has yet to be approved
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10 Tangible fixed assets Freehold land, Vehicles, mobile
builldings Pumping  plant & office
& reservoirs Mains plant equipment Total
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Cost
At 1 Apnl 2007 41,922 96,965 27.660 9,768 176,315
Addrtions 827 5,300 4,703 1,203 12,033
Disposals (231) (226) - {120) {577)
At 31 March 2008 42,518 102,039 32,363 10,851 187,771
Depreciation
At 1 Apnl 2007 6,482 55,447 8,071 6,277 76,277
Charge for year 394 3,633 1,716 917 6,660
Disposals dunng year (39) (226) - {97) (362)
At 31 March 2008 6,837 58,854 9,787 7,097 82,575
Net book value
At 31 March 2008 35,681 43,185 22,576 3,754 105,196
At 31 March 2007 35,440 41,518 19,589 3,491 100,038
Capital contributions
At 1 Apnl 2007 17,135 - - 17,135
Recewved during year - 753 753
At 31 March 2008 - 17.888 - - 17,888
Net book value after deducting capital contributions
At 31 March 2008 35,681 25,297 22,576 3,754 87,308
At 31 March 2007 35,440 24,383 19,589 3,491 82,903

11 Fixed asset investments

Loans to Group
undertakings

£000
At 1 Apnl 2007 59,940
Additions 538

At 31 March 2008

60,478
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12 Debtors 2008 2007
£000 £000

(restated)

Trade debtors 1,064 1,095
Amounts owed by Group companies 66 51
Prepayments and accrued income 2,811 2,187
Other debtors 108 387
4,049 3,720

All of the above amounts fall due wathin one year

As at 31 March 2008, trade debtors with a carrying value of £2 573m (2007 - £2 196m) were impared and prowided for Aged
debtors are provided for in full, but only an element of current debt 15 provided for The amount of the provision was £1 794m as at 31
March 2008 (2007 - £1 607m)

The ageing of these debtors was as follows

2008 2007
£000 £000
Up to 12 months 976 750
Over 12 months 1,597 1,446
2,573 2,196

The debtors provided for are mainly in respect of water charges for househald customers where experience in the water industry has
shown over time that 1t 1s likely that there will be difficulties in recovering the water charges for the periods concerned

Movements on the provision for bad debt are as follows

2008 2007
£000 £000
At 1 Apnil 2007 1,607 1,466
Provision for bad debt required in the year 396 352
Debt wntten off in the year as uncollectable (209) {211)
At 31 March 2008 1,794 1,607

The other classes within debtors do not contain balances that may be rrrecoverable The maximum exposure to credit nsk at the
reporting date 1s the fair value of each class of debtor mentioned above The Company does not hoid any collateral as security

13 Current asset investments
Unlisted investments £4,000 (2007 - £4,000)
14 Cash at bank and »n hand

Of the total amount shown of £2 494m, £1 463m (2007 - £1 408m) s held specifically for the payment of the next half yearly loan
interest charges

15 Creditors amounts falling due within one year 2008 2007
£000 £000

{restated)

3% Perpetual debenture stock 60 60
3%:% Perpetual debenture stock 185 185
4% Perpetual debenture stock 39 39
Bank loan 4,000 1,500
Payments received on account 1,273 1,390
Trade creditors 714 2,143
Amounts owed to Group companies 3,015 3,646
Corporation tax 995 1,061
Social security and other taxation 208 201
Other creditors 2,203 1,967
Accruals 463 403
Water rates in advance 4,861 4,735
18,016 17.330

The £4 Om bank loan s part of a five year £15m working capital facility, which 1s secured upon the assets of the Company and bears
interest at London Interbank rates
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16 Creditors amounts falling due after more than one year 2008 2007
£000 £060

In five years or more
Bank ioan 78,633 75,733
Less deferred arrangement costs 1,394 1,451
77.239 74,282

The thirty year £66 5Sm index-linked loan was issued on 26 June 2002 and 15 secured upon the assets of the Company The capital

value of the loan 1s adjusted by the change in the Retail Prices Index from year to year The fees associated with the loan issue of
£1 722m are amortised over the life of the loan The amount owing on the loan 1s stated net of the unamortised i1ssue fees

The loan interest 15 calculated by adjusting the value of the loan by the Retail Prices Index and then charging interest on this inflated

amount at 3 635% per annum

17 Prowisions for habilities 2008 2007
£000 £000

Deferred taxation

At 1 Aprl 2007 9,565 9,455

Provided during the year in profit and loss account (1,221) 110

At 31 March 2008 8,344 9,565

The total deferred tax balance before the effect of discounting 1s £9 426m {2007 - £15512m ) Theamount provided for deferred

taxation represents timing differences caused by the excess of tax allowances over depreciation

2008 2007

£000 £000
Deferred tax excluding that relating to pension asset
Accelerated capital allowances 8,344 9,565
Pension asset (note 28) 8,394 6,549
Total provision for deferred tax 16,738 16,114
At 1 Apnl 2007 16,114 15,699
Deferred tax charge in profit and loss account {note B} (1,797) 570
Deferred tax charged to the statement of total recognised gains and losses 2,421 (155)
At 31 March 2008 16,738 16,114

The 2007 Finance Act reduced the corporation tax rate from 30% to 28% with effect from 1 Apni 2008 The deferred tax balances

have therefore been re-measured resulting in a credit to the profit and loss account of £0 992m

The abolition of Industrial Buildings Allowances (IBA's} was announced in the 2007 Budget and as a consequence timing differences in

respect of IBA's are no lenger recogmised This has resulted in a credit to the profit and loss account of £1 403m

No provision has been made for deferred tax on gains recogrised on the sale of properties where potentially taxable gans have been
rolled over into replacement assets Such tax would become payable only if the property were sold without it being possible to claim
roltover relief The total amount unprowided for 1s £0 694m (2007 - £0 781m } At present 1t 15 not enwisaged that any tax will become

payable in the foreseeable future
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18 Finanaial instruments

The Financial Review on page 8 provides an explanation of the objectives and policies for holding financial instruments The numerical
disclosures in this note deal with financial assets and liabilities Short term debtors and creditors have been excluded from all
disclosures The fair value of all financial instruments 15 not materially different to the book value

Financial assets

The fingnaial assets of the Company are detalled below The fixed asset investment earns interest based on London Interbank rates
Cash at bank and in hand includes a sterling cash deposit of £1 460m , which s placed on the money market at a six monthly rate and
s held spectfically for the payment of the next half yearly loan interest charges The remaining cash balances on bank accounts receive
nterest at commercial rates

Financial iabilities

The Company has no foreign currency contracts The interest rate profile of its financial hiabilities at 31 March 2008 1s detailed below

Sterling 2008 2007
£000 £000
Assets
Fixed asset investment 60,478 59,940
Current asset investments 4 4
Cash at bank and in hand 2,494 2,460
62,976 62,404
Sterling Fixed Fixed Floating Floating
Rate Rate Rate Rate Total Total
2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Liablities
Bank loans and overdraft 77,239 74,282 4,000 1,500 81,239 75,782
Debenture stock 284 284 - - 284 284
77,523 74,566 4,000 1,500 81,523 76,066
Fixed rate Weighted Weighted Weighted Weighted
Average Average Average Period  Average Period
Interest Interest for which for which
Rate Rate Rate 1s Fixed Rate 1s Fixed
% % Years Years
2008 2007 2008 2007
Sterling 36 36 24 25

Interest on the floating rate financial hability 1s based on London Interbank rates
The matunity profile of the Company's financial habilities at 31 March 2008 is detailed below

2008 2007

£000 £000

In one year or less 4,284 1,784
in more than five years 77.239 74,282
81,523 76,066

The Company had undrawn committed borrowing facilities at 31 March 2008, in respect of which all conditions precedent had been
met, as follows

2008 2007

£000 £000

Expiring In one year or less 2,000 2,000
Expiring 1n more than two years 11,000 13,500
13,000 15,500

The carrying amounts of the financial assets and liabilities shown above approximate their farr value
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19 Called up share capital 2008 2007
£000 £000

Authorised

Equity

6,000,000 Ordinary Shares of 10p each 600 600

10,500,000 ‘A’ Ordinary Shares of 10p each 1,050 1,050
1,650 1,650

Non-equity

3,250,000 Redeemable Preference Shares of £1 each 3,250 3,250
4,900 4,900

Allotted, called up and fully paid

Equity

4,265,177 Ordinary Shares of 10p each 427 427

6,509,162 ‘A’ Ordinary Shares of 10p each 651 651
1,078 1,078

The Ordinary and ‘A’ Ordinary Shareholders are entitled to receive dividends pan passu according to the amount paid up or credited as
paid up on their shares The Ordinary Shares are the only class of share to carry voting nghts

In a distnbution on the winding up of the Company, the Ordinary and ‘A’ Ordinary Shareholders are entitled to share the balance of any
surplus assets pan passu according to the amount paid up or credited as paid up on their shares

20 Reserves Share Capial Profit
Premium Redemption and Loss

£000 £000 £000

At 1 Apnl 2007 as previously reported 1,539 3,250 56,364
Prior year adjustment - unbilled measured income - - 1,361
At 1 Apnl 2007 restated 1,539 3,250 57,725
Profit for the financial year - - 8,222
Dwvidends - - (4,209)
Actuanal gain on pension scheme - - 7,602
Movement on deferred tax relating to pension scheme - - {2,129)
Effect of change to corporation tax rate on pension asset - - (292)
At 31 March 2008 1,539 3,250 66,919
21 Reconaliation of movements in shareholders’ funds 2008 2007
£000 £000

{restated}

Profit for the finanaal year 8,222 8,125
Dividends (4.209) (4,471}
4,013 3,654

Actuanal gain/(loss) on pension scheme 7,602 {519}
Movement on deferred tax relating to pension scheme (2,129) 155
Effect of change 1o corporation tax rate on pension asset (292) -
Net addition to shareholders’ funds 9,194 3.290
Opening shareholders’ funds as previously reported 62,231 59,100
Prior year adjustment - unbilled measured income 1,361 1,202
Opening shareholders’ funds restated 63,592 60,302
Closing shareholders’ funds 72,786 63,592
22 Reconclliation of operating profit to net cash inflow from operating activities 2008 2007
£000 £000

(restated)

Operating profit 7.585 8,842
Other pension costs 2,304 1,153
Depreciation charge 6,660 6,221
{Increasel/decrease in stocks {6) 132
{Increase) in debtors (316) (571)
{Decrease)/increase in creditors (231) 359
Net cash inflow from operating activities 15,996 16,136
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23 Reconciliation of net cash flow to movement in net debt 2008 2007

£000 £000
(Decrease)fincrease in cash in the year (26) 401
Cash outflow from tncrease In liquid resources 60 50
Cash {inflow) from {(increase} in debt (2,500) {1,500)
Change in net debt resulting from cash flows {2,466) {1,049)
Non cash movement {2,957) {2,461)
Movement i net debt in the year {5,423) (3,510
Net debt at 1 Apnl 2007 (73,602) (70,092)
Net debt at 31 March 2008 (79,025) (73,602)

The Company Includes as liquid resources term deposits of less than one year and current asset equity Investments

24 Analysis of changes in net debt At Cash Non cash At
1 Apnil 2007 Flow Movements 31 March 2008
£000 £000 £000 £000¢
Cash at bank and in hand 1,060 (26} - 1,034
Debt falling due within one year (1,784 {2,500} - (4,284)
Debt falling due after one year (74,282) - (2,957) (77,239)
(76,066) {2,500} {2.957) (81,523)
Short term deposits 1,400 60 - 1,460
Current asset equity investments 4 - - 4
1,404 60 - 1,464
(73,602) (2,466) {(2,957) (79,025)

The non cash movement relates to the annual indexation of the loan and the amortisation of the issue fees
25 Capital commitments 2008 2007
£000 £000
Contracted for but not provided in these financial statements 3,158 5,532

The Company has a further commitment under operating leases relating to ¢computer hardware and associated software of £0 345m
per annum {2007 - £0 345m } which expire as set out below

2008 2007
£000 £000
Within one year 345 -
Within two to five years - 345

26 Contingent liabilities

There were no reportable contingent liabilities at 31 March 2008 or at 31 March 2007

27 Ultimate parent undertaking

Portsmouth Water Limited 1s a wholly-owned subsidiary of Portsmouth Water Holdings Limited and has, therefore, taken advantage of
the exemption under FRS 8 Related Party Disclosures not to prowide information on related party transactions with other undertakings

within the Group The ultimate parent undertaking 15 South Downs Capital Limited and is the largest and smallest company for which
Group accounts are prepared Copies of these accounts can be obtained on request from the Registered Office
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28 Pensions

Brockhampton Holdings Limited is the princpal employer and 1ts subsidiary undertaking, Portsmouth Water Limited, s the participating
employer in the Brockhampton Pension Scheme This scheme provides defined benefits based primanly on final pensionable earnings
The assets of the scheme are held in a separate trustee administered fund

The formal actuanal valuation as at 31 March 2005 was updated to the accounting date by an independent qualdied actuary in
accordance with FRS 17 As required by FRS 17, the value of the defined benefit liabilities has been measured using the projected unit
method

The key FRS 17 assumptions used for the scheme were as follows

2008 2007 2006

% per annum % per annum % per annum

Prnice inflation 37 32 30
Discount rate 67 52 49
Pension increases (RPI} 37 32 30
Salary growth 6 45 5095 575

On the basis of the assumpttons used for hife expectancy, a male pensioner currently aged 60 would be expected to lve for a further
26 8 years (2007 - 26 7 years) Allowance 1s made for future improvements in hfe expectancy

The fair value of assets i the scheme, a breakdown of the assets into the main asset classes, the present value of the FRS 17 labilities
and the surplus of assets over the FRS 17 liabiliies (which equals the gross pension asset) are set out below

2008 2008 2007 2007 2006 2006

Expected Farr Expected Far Expected Farr

Return % Value Return % Value Return % Value

per annum £000 per annum £000 per annum £000

Equities 77 66,777 78 76,283 74 77,020
Bonds 45 33,139 45 27,670 42 23,583
Other 39 7,780 54 4,758 45 4,296
64 107,696 69 108,711 66 104,899

The expected return on assets Is derived by taking the weighted average of the long-term expected return on each of the asset classes

2008 2007

£000 £000
Total fair value of scheme assets 107,696 108,711
FRS 17 value of scheme habilities 77,718 86,882
Gross pension asset 29,978 21,829
Related deferred tax hiability 8,394 6,549
Net pension asset 21,584 15,280

Under FRS 17, the scheme 1s represented on the balance sheet at 31 March 2008 as an asset of £29978m (2007 - £21 829m), which
amounts to £21 584m net of deferred tax (2007 - £15 280m)

The Company remains on a contnibutton hohday at the present ttime This position wall be revisited in the light of the results of the
31 March 2008 actuanial valuation Members were also on a contnbution holiday untld 1 October 2006 but have now restarted the
payment of contnbutions {at a reduced rate for the first year and at the full rate since 1 October 2007)
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The FRS 17 value of scheme labtlities moved over the period as follows

2008 2007

£000 £000
Opening scheme labilities 86,882 84,086
Employer’s part of current service cost 2,304 2,275
Interest cost 4,500 4116
Contributions by scheme participants 177 51
Benefits pad (3.161) (2,508)
Past service credit - {(1,122)
Actuanal gain (12,984) {16)
Closing scheme habilitres 77,718 86,882
The FRS 17 value of scheme assets moved over the penod as follows

2008 2007

£000 £000
Opening far value of scheme assets 108,711 104,899
Expected return on assets 7,351 6,804
Contributions by scheme participants 177 51
Benefits paid (3.161) (2,508}
Actuanal loss (5,382) (535)
Closing farr value of scheme assets 107,696 108,711
The following amounts have been included within operating profit under FRS 17

2008 2007

£000 £000
Current service cost (employer’s part only) 2,304 2,275
Past service credit - {1,122)
Total eperating charge 2,304 1,153
The following amounts have been included as other finance income under FRS 17

2008 2007

£000 £000
Expected return on pension scheme assets 7,351 6,804
Interest on post retirement liabilities (4,500) {4,116)
Net return 2.851 2,688
Total credit recognised in the prohit and loss account 547 1,535
The following amounts have been recogrised within the statement of total recognised gains and losses {STRGL) under FRS 17

2008 2007

£000 £000
Actual return less expected return on scheme assets (5,382) (535)
Expenience gains arising on scheme liabilities - -
Gain due to changes i assumptions underlying the FRS 17 value of scheme habilities 12,984 16
Actuanal gain/loss} recognised in the STRGL 7,602 {519)
The actual return on plan assets was £1 969m in the year to 31 March 2008 (2007 - £6 269m)
The histary of expentence gains and losses is

2008 2007 2006 2005 2004

Present value of scheme habilities (£000) (77.718) (86,882} (84,086) (71,593} (66,845}
Total fair value of scheme assets (£000) 107,696 108,711 104,899 87.984 81,058
Surplus {£000) 29,978 21,829 20,813 16,391 14,213
Actual return less expected return on scheme assets (£000) {5,382) (535) 13,587 3,565 14,123
Percentage of scheme’s assets {(5)% 0% 13% 4% 17%
Expenence gamns arising on scheme’s liabilities {(£000) - - 65 61 207
Percentage of the FRS 17 value of the scheme’s habilities - - - - -
Total amount recognised in the STRGL (£000) 7,602 (519) 4527 2,237 7,694
Percentage of the FRS 17 value of the scheme's liabilities 10% 0% 5% 3% 12%

The cumulative amount recognised in the STRGL as at 31 March 2008 was a loss of £6 977m {2007 - loss of £14 579m)

The Accounting Standards Board have published guidance relating to best practice for disclosure of pensions information The
Company have decrded not to follow the guidance at this time
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Notice of Meeting

Notice 1s hereby given that the Annuat General Meeting of Portsmouth Water Lirrnted will be held at the Company’s Registered Office,
PO Box 8, West Street, Havant, Hants, at 11 00 am on Friday, the 25th day of July 2008, on the following business

1 To recewve and consider the Directars’ Report and Accounts for the year ended 31 March 2008 and the Auditors’ Report thereon
2 Tore-elect Mr R L Sullvan a Director of the Company
3 Tore-elect Mr R ) Tennant a Director of the Company

4 To reappoint Saffery Champness as Company Auditors and to authonse the Directors to fix therr remuneration

Registered Office

PO Box 8

West Street Havant By order of the Board
Hants PO9 11G C Hardyman
30 May 2008 Secretary
Notes

1) Debenture holders are reminded that the holding of debenture stock does not entitle them to attend or vote at the meeting

11} Shareholders are reminded that no voting nghts attach to the ‘A Ordinary Shares ‘A Ordinary Shareholders are not entitled to
attend the meeting

ny A proxy form s enclosed for Shareholders entitled to vote at the meeting

v} To be valid proxies must reach the Company’s Registered Cffice not later than forty-eight hours before the time fixed for the
meeting
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Appendix - Key Performance Indicators

KPI - 1 2008 2007
a) Gearing - Debt/RQV £000 £000
(1) Debt
Bank loan {note 16} 78,633 75,733
Bank loan {note 15} 4,000 1,500
Debenture stock {note 15) 284 284
Cash at bank and 1n hand (2,494) (2,460}
80,423 75,057

For the purposes of this ratio, debt excludes the deferred arrangement costs of £1 394m (note 16) and the current asset investment of
£0 004m {note 13}

(v} Regulatory Capital Value (RCV)

Value established by Ofwat in Final Determination 1n 2004

One of the elements considered by Ofwat in assessing revenues required by the Company 15 a return on the capital investment in the
business The value of the capital base of each company for the purposes of setting price limits 1s the RCV The RCV 1s widely used by

the nvestment community as a proxy for the market value of the regulated business For Portsmouth Water the RCV 1s a key element of
its bond covenants

2008 2007
£000 £000
Regulatory capital value indexed to 31 March 111,172 105,341
{m) Gearing - Debt/RCV ratio (1) — (n) 72 3% 71 3%

b} Cash interest cover
This ratio represents the number of times cashflow of the business covers interest payments

(1) Cashflow before interest paid 1s derved from the cashflow statement on page 33 and 15 calculated as follows

2008 2007

£000 £000
Net cash flow from operating actwvities 15,996 16,136
Interest receved 3,780 3,156
Taxation (1,910) (2,257)
Capntal expenditure (12,129) (10,636)
New borrowings 2,500 1,500

8,237 7,899
{n) Interest pad 3,257 2.869
{m) Cash nterest cover ratio (i) — {u) 253 275

KPI - 2 and 3 Customer Service Measures

Indicators are based on information supplied to Ofwat and confirmed in the Ofwat publication ‘Levels of Service for the Water Industry
in England and Wales Report’

KPI - 4 Water Quality

This indicator 15 based on figures reported to the DWI

KPI - 5 Efficiency

The results for this indicator are provided by Ofwat n its publication “Water and Sewerage Urit Costs and Efficiency’
KPI - 6 Leakage

This indicator 1s based on figures supplied to Ofwat and confirmed in 1ts report "Security of Supply, Leakage and the Efficient Use of
Water' The figures for 2007/08 have been supplied to Ofwat, but will not be confirmed in the Ofwat document until later in 2008




